
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Regular Meeting  
July 21, 2016  

7:05 PM 
(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention  

and EMS District meeting)  
 

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular Meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, July 21, 
2016 at 7:05 pm or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the 
agenda at any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  
By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to 
speak at the City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council 
cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible 
inclusion on a future agenda. 

 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 
1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
2. Community Interest:  Presentation of Proclamation for the City of Dallas. (Mayor Jim Olk) 



 
 

Public Hearing 
 
3. Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-07-00840 amending the Code of Ordinances, 

Division 8 - Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses regarding requirements for 
habitable space and accessory buildings; and amendments to the Code of 
Ordinances, Schedule Use Chart related to guest/servant quarters and accessory 
buildings with habitual space. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B.  Conduct Public Hearing 
C. Take Action  

 
Consent Agenda 

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single 
vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
4. Consider approval of the minutes of the June 16, 2016 City Council meeting. (City Secretary 

Stacy Henderson)  
 
5. Consider calling two public hearings regarding the City of Lucas Tax Rate and Fiscal Year 

Budget for 2016-2017 with the first public hearing to be held on August 18, 2016 and the 
second public hearing to be held on September 1, 2016. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 

 
6. Consider accepting the resignation of Alternate Member Kevin Wier of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson)  
 
7. Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-07-00839 amending the City of Lucas, Code of 

Ordinances by amending Appendix C titled “Fee Schedule” adding mowing fees, an 
administrative fee, and a trash and debris removal fee. (Development Services Director 
Joe Hilbourn)  

Regular Agenda 
 
8. Presentation and discussion regarding the provision of law enforcement services by the 

Collin County Sheriff’s Office. (Councilmember Phil Lawrence)  
 
9. Discuss and provide guidance to staff regarding the enforcement activity associated with 

the prohibited use of fireworks. (Councilmember Tim Baney)  
 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with Structural 

Assurance, LLC for the construction of the Blondy Jhune Road Bridge Replacement 
Project in the amount not to exceed $1,559,781.72 plus a 20% contingency.  (Public Works 
Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 



 
11. Discuss and provide guidance to staff regarding the revision and amendment of the 

Comprehensive Plan including: (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)  
• Chapter 1 – Introduction 
• Chapter 2 – Demographics 
• Chapter 3 – Housing 
• Chapter 4 – Land Use 
• Chapter 5 – Economic Development 
• Chapter 6 – Parks, Recreation & Open Space 
• Chapter 7 – Streets, Drainage & Master Thoroughfare Plan 
• Chapter 8 – Water System 

12. Discuss and consider roadside parking and public safety in the vicinity of Kelly Farm 
Burger Stand located at 1989 West Lucas Road. (Councilmember Debbie Fisher and Public 
Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
13. Discuss Board appointment process, including application amendments, conducting 

interviews and updating procedures. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson) 
 
14. Discuss the nomination process for the 2016 Service Tree Award Program. (City Secretary 

Stacy Henderson) 
 
15. Consider appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2016 Founders Day Parade. (Mayor Jim Olk)  

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 

Code. 
 
16.  Executive Session: No Executive Session item is scheduled for this meeting.  
 
17. Adjournment.  
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin 
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us 
on or before 5:00 p.m. on July 18, 2016.   

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
 Citizen Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Community Interest:   Presentation of Proclamation for the City of Dallas.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  

 



 

Proclamation 
WHEREAS, the City of Dallas, Texas is a community that through its cosmopolitan 
atmosphere, provide its residents with expansive opportunities and its visitors with 
enriching experiences; and 

WHEREAS, the Citizen of Lucas, Texas benefit from having access to the many 
attributes offered by the City of Dallas; and 

WHEREAS, on the evening of Thursday, July 7, 2016, darkness engulfed the City of 
Dallas as violence erupted that would ultimately take the lives of five officers and 
wounding many others; and 

WHEREAS, Dallas Police Chief David Brown, a long-time resident of the City and a 
30-year veteran of the Dallas Police Department and the honorable officers of the 
Dallas Police Department faced an unfolding tragedy with remarkable bravery as they 
responded to the threat; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lucas is praying for Mayor Mike Rawlins and the Dallas City 
Council, City of Dallas Police Department and for all public servants affected by this 
heartbreaking event; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jim Olk, Mayor for the City of Lucas, Texas do hereby 
proclaim that the City of Lucas is offering its prayers for healing to our friends and 
neighbors who serve the City of Dallas. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jim Olk, Mayor 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

City Council Agenda Request  
July 21, 2016  

Agenda Item:    
 
Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-07-00840 amending the Code of Ordinances, Division 8 - 
Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses regarding requirements for habitable space and 
accessory buildings; and amendments to the Code of Ordinances, Schedule Use Chart related to 
guest/servant quarters and accessory buildings with habitual space. 
 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B.  Conduct Public Hearing 
C. Take Action  
 
Background Information:  
 
Proposed amendments to the Code of Ordinances, Division 8, Accessory Buildings, Structures and 
Uses was brought before the Planning and Zoning Commission at their June 9, 2016 meeting for 
consideration. Proposed changes from the Commission have been incorporated, changes include 
replacing the term guest/servants quarters with the term habitable space and adding requirements 
requiring accessory buildings with habitable space to meet minimum standards required by 
the International Residential Code and providing for permitted uses.  
 
Proposed amendments to the Schedule Use Chart have been included in the proposed Ordinance 
to reflect the amendments related to guest/servant quarters and accessory buildings with habitual 
space.  
 
Supporting Documentation:   
 
1. Public hearing notices 
2. Proposed Accessory Building language updates   
3. Proposed Ordinance 2016-07-00840 
4. Proposed Schedule Use Chart  

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended unanimously to amend Division 8, 
Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses replacing the term guest/servants quarters with the term 
habitable space and adding requirements requiring accessory buildings with habitable space to 
meet minimum standards required by the International Residential Code and providing for 
permitted uses.  



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

 
City of Lucas  

City Council Agenda Request  
July 21, 2016  

 
 
Motion:    
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the amendments to the Code of Ordinances, Division 8 -  
Accessory Building, Structures and Uses by replacing the term guest/servants quarters with the 
term habitable space and adding requirements requiring accessory buildings with habitable space 
to meet minimum standards required by the International Residential Code and providing for 
permitted uses. 
 

 

 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, July 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. and City 
Council will conduct a second public hearing on Thursday, July 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider changes to the City’s Code of Ordinances 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Amending the supplemental regulations for Division 8. Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses 
by replacing the term guest/servants quarters with the term habitable space and requiring accessory 
buildings with habitable space to meet minimum standards required by the International 
Residential Code and providing for permitted uses. 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable 
to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, City Secretary, 665 Country 
Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us, and it will be presented at the 
Hearing. If you have any questions about the above hearing you may 
contact jhilbourn@lucastexas.us  
 
  
  
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas (the “City”), will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, July 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. and City 
Council will conduct a second public hearing on Thursday, July 21, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider changes to the City’s Code of Ordinances 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Amending the Schedule of Use Chart to reflect changing from allowing guest/servant quarters to 
accessory buildings with habitual space. 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable 
to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, City Secretary, 665 Country 
Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email shenderson@lucastexas.us, and it will be presented at the 
Hearing. If you have any questions about the above hearing you may 
contact jhilbourn@lucastexas.us  
 
  
  
 

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


 

(e)  Schedule of uses chart. 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00840 
Approved:  July 21, 2016 1 

ORDINANCE 2016-07-00840 
[ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE  

CHAPTER 14 “ZONING”] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, AMENDING THE LUCAS CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 14 TITLED “ZONING” BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE 14.03 TITLED “DISTRICTS” BY AMENDING 
DIVISION 15 TITLED “SCHEDULE OF USES” BY AMENDING 
SECTION 14.03.801 TITLED “USE DESIGNATIONS” BY AMENDING 
SUBSECTION (e) TITLED “SCHEDULE OF USES CHART” TO 
INCLUDE “ACCESSORY BUILDINGS WITH HABITABLE SPACE”; BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE 14.04 TITLED “SUPPLEMENTARY 
REGULATIONS” BY AMENDING DIVISION 8 TITLED “ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND USES” BY AMENDING SECTION 
14.04.302 TITLED “ACCESSORY STRUCTURES, BUILDINGS AND 
USES PERMITTED” TO EXCLUDE TRAILERS, CONTAINERS, 
COMMERCIAL BOXES OR OTHER SIMILAR STRUCTURES; BY 
AMENDING SECTION 14.04.304 TITLED “GENERAL ACCESSORY 
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES REGULATIONS” TO INCLUDE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCESSORY BUILDINGS WITH HABITABLE 
SPACE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF 
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with 
reference to the granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by 
publication and otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all 
property owners generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the 
vicinity thereof, and the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that 
said zoning change should be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map 
should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, is hereby amended by 
amending Chapter 14 titled “Zoning” by amending Article 14.03 titled “Districts” by amending 
Division 15 titled “Schedule of Uses” by amending Section 14.03.801 titled “Use designations” 
by amending Subsection (e) titled “Schedule of uses chart”; and, by amending Article 14.04 titled 
“Supplementary Regulations” by amending Division 8 titled “Accessory Buildings, Structures 
and Uses” by amending Section 14.04.302 titled “Accessory structures, buildings and uses 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00840 
Approved:  July 21, 2016 2 

permitted” and by amending Section 14.04.304 titled “General accessory buildings and structures 
regulations”, to read as follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 14 
 

ZONING 
 

. . .  
 

ARTICLE 14.03   DISTRICTS 
 

. . .  
 

Division 15.  Schedule of Uses 
 

Sec. 14.03.801  Use designations 
 
. . .  
 
(e) Schedule of uses chart. 
 

Use AO R2 R1.5 R1 VC CB OS MH LI ED 

Residential uses                     

Accessory buildings X X X X S   X X   X 

. . .            

Registered family home S S S S         

Accessory buildings with Habitable 
Space 

X X X X         

Single-family dwelling (detached) X X X X  X X    X 

Temporary field construction office X X X X X X   X X 

Educational, institutional, public and 
special uses 

          

. . .            

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00840 
Approved:  July 21, 2016 3 

ARTICLE 14.04   SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 
. . .  
 

DIVISION 8.  Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses 
 
. . .  
 
Sec. 14.04.302  Accessory structures, buildings and uses permitted 
 
(a) Accessory structures or buildings may be erected, maintained, and used for purposes 
which are clearly accessory to the principal or main structure, building or use permitted on the 
premises. Except in the agriculture district accessory buildings shall be built after the main 
building or structure. 
 
. . .  
 
(d) No trailers, containers, commercial boxes or other similar structures shall be used as 
accessory structures or buildings. 
 
. . .  
 
Sec. 14.04.304  General accessory buildings and structures regulations 
 
In all residential districts, accessory structures shall comply with the following standards except 
as may be otherwise specifically provided for in this code: 
 
. . .  
 

(4) Accessory buildings that contain Habitable Space as defined by the International 
Residential Code adopted by the City shall be permitted in compliance with the 
following: 

 
(A) One accessory building containing Habitable Space not exceeding 1,000 

square feet in area may be permitted as an accessory use to a single-family 
residence in R-1 zoning district. 

 
(B) One accessory building containing Habitable Space not exceeding 1,250 

square feet in area may be permitted as an accessory use to a single-family 
residence in R-1.5 zoning district. 

 
(C) One accessory building containing Habitable Space not exceeding 1,500 

square feet in area may be permitted as an accessory use to a single-family 
residence in R-2 or AO zoning district. 

 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00840 
Approved:  July 21, 2016 4 

(D) Detached accessory buildings containing Habitable Space shall be limited 
to a maximum height of 25 feet measured to the peak of the roof of the 
structure. 

 
(E) Accessory buildings containing Habitable Space shall only be occupied by 

an immediate member of the family that resides in the main building or, if 
occupied by domestic staff, all adults occupying the quarters shall be full-
time domestic servants providing support to the property, health care 
providers for the residents of the main building or care takers of the 
property. 

 
(F) Accessory buildings containing Habitable Space shall meet the 

requirements of the International Residential Code as adopted by the City 
from time to time. 

 
(G) Accessory buildings containing Habitable Space may not be rented out 

separate and apart from the main structure. 
 
(H) Any accessory building where a kitchen or food preparation area is 

provided shall only be permitted on property that is located within an R-2 
or AO zoning districts and only with a specific use permit.  The specific 
use permit may only be granted provided the owners of the property enact 
a deed restriction with the city as party to the deed restriction that prohibits 
the use of the Habitable Space to be used for lease/barter agreement other 
than that of the full-time domestic staff providing support to the property, 
health-care providers for the residents of the main building or care takers 
of the property. 

 
(I) Guest servant quarters shall be designed to be architecturally compatible 

with the main building and constructed of similar materials as the main 
building. 

 
Secs. 14.04.305-14.04.340 Reserved.” 
 
Section 2. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00840 
Approved:  July 21, 2016 5 

Section 4. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 5. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 21st DAY OF JULY  2016. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(07-06-2016/77177) 
 



Item No. 04-05-06-07 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson, Finance Director Liz Exum, Development 
Services Director Joe Hilbourn 

 
Consent Agenda Items:   
 
4 Consider approval of the minutes of the June 16, 2016 City Council meeting.  
 
5. Consider calling two public hearings regarding the City of Lucas Tax Rate and Fiscal Year 

Budget for 2016-2017 with the first public hearing to be held on August 18, 2016 and the 
second public hearing to be held on September 1, 2016.  

 
6. Consider accepting the resignation of Alternate Member Kevin Wier of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  
 
7. Consider adopting Ordinance 2016-07-00839 amending the City of Lucas, Code of 

Ordinances by amending Appendix C titled “Fee Schedule” adding mowing fees, an 
administrative fee, and a trash and debris removal fee.  

 
Background Information:  
 
Agenda Item No. 7: 
The Fee Schedule is being amended to add mowing fees, trash and debris removal fees, and an 
administrative fee for residential properties that the City mowed for noncompliance.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
1. Minutes of the June 16, 2016 City Council meeting.  
2. Ordinance 2016-07-839 Amending Master Fee Schedule  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion:  
I make a motion to approve/deny the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e  
 

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

June 16, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
Administrative Assistant Linda West 

City Councilmembers Absent: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke 

Staff Absent:  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to turn off 
or silence their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input: 
 
There was no citizen input from the audience. 
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest Items: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele reminded those in attendance that the Founders Day event would be held on 
October 22, 2016 and donations were welcome for the stick-horse rodeo event.  

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes of the June 2, 2016 City Council meeting.  
 



2 | P a g e  
 

MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Fisher, to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 

Regular Agenda 
 
4. Consider approving Resolution R 2016-06-00453 authorizing the City Manager to 

execute a quitclaim deed for 0.03 acres, more or less, parcel of land to Robert and 
Carol Winston located west of the Blondy Jhune Road eastern bridge associated with 
Lot 3A of Replat of Rock Creek Acres. 

 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster stated that the land that was purchased by 
the City in 2003 from Kenneth Enloe had been purchased by Mr. and Mrs. Winston a year earlier as 
part of a larger land purchase.  Mr. Foerster explained that the quitclaim deed would rectify the 
situation and clarify any future title searches associated with this property if sold. 
 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence, to approve 

Resolution R 2016-06-00453 authorizing the City Manager to execute a quitclaim deed for 0.03 
acres, more or less, parcel of land to Robert and Carol Winston located west of the Blondy Jhune 
Road eastern bridge associated with Lot 3A of Replat of Rock Creek Acres.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the 

Collin County Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program for a 
trailhead on East Winningkoff Road adjacent to the City's existing water tower 
and approve Resolution R 2016-06-00449 designating participation and funds.  

 
A presentation was given by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn regarding bringing forth a 
grant application to the Collin County Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program 
for a trailhead on East Winningkoff Road.  Mr. Hilbourn noted that the difference in this 
application from prior years was that an easement has been obtained from the North Texas 
Municipal Water District that connects to the Trinity Trail. 
 
Mr. Hilbourn explained that should the grant be approved, matching funds in the amount of 
$11,000 had been budgeted in the City’s general account in the 16/17 fiscal year budget. 
 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence, to 

approve authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the Collin County 
Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program for a trailhead on East 
Winningkoff Road and approve Resolution R 2016-06-00449 designating participation and 
funds.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Consider amendments to the Comprehensive Plan to Chapter 1, Introduction; 

Chapter 2, Population; Chapter 3, Housing; and Chapter 4, Land Use including 
the future Land Use Map and Aerial Illustration Map. 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission had 
reviewed this item and their recommendations were included in the draft document.  Mr. Hilbourn 
requested that the City Council review the proposed amendments and notify staff of additional 
recommendations.  Mr. Hilbourn noted that any revised amendments would be taken before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for review and final review and approval would be brought 
before the City Council. 
 
Councilmember Fisher noted that there were significant amendments needed for better clarification 
and that she would work with the Planning and Zoning Commission and staff to address the 
necessary revisions. 
 
Rebecca Mark, 2550 Estates Parkway, stated that she and her neighbors had attended the Planning 
and Zoning Commission meetings relating to this item and requested the City Council review the 
Land Use Plan associated with their properties along Estates Parkway.  Ms. Mark discussed the 
negative impact that the high school and commercial development would have on their residential 
properties and stated that the Village Center zoning proposed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission would be a good use for the area. 
 
The City Council directed staff to work on amendments to the Comprehensive Plan with assistance 
of Councilmember Fisher and Planning and Zoning Chairman Peggy Rusterholtz.  Any comments 
or remarks should be forwarded to Councilmember Fisher with revised amendments be taken back 
to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for consideration.  
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Cooperative Purchasing 

Interlocal Agreement with the City of Garland, Texas. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster stated that the agreement allows the City to 
purchase fire hydrant and waterline valve maintenance through the City of Garland.   
 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence, to 

authorize the Mayor Pro Tem to enter into a Cooperative Purchasing Interlocal Agreement with the 
City of Garland, Texas.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 

 
8. Discuss and provide direction to the City Manager regarding remaining funding for 

Street Maintenance for summer 2016. 
 
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster noted that the remaining funds in the 
Improvements Roads account of the 15/16 budget of approximately $91,940 had not been 
allocated.  Mr. Foerster recommended allocating those funds to milling and overlay work on Estelle 
Lane and Moonlight Trail. 
 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence, authorizing 

the City Manager to enter into a contract with APAC for an additional $91,730 for the milling 
and overlay of Estelle Lane and Moonlight Trail, for a total agreement with APAC not to exceed 
$560,690 for all work included in their contract.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 

  



4 | P a g e  
 

9. Discuss and consider roadside parking and public safety in the vicinity of Kelly Farm 
Burger Stand located at 1989 West Lucas Road. 

 
Councilmember Fisher discussed concerns regarding parking along the shoulder of the road and in 
the grass along W. Lucas Road near the Kelly Farm Burger Stand creating a public safety hazard. 
Councilmember Fisher noted that the northern side of the roadway was within the city limits of 
Lucas, and the southern portion of the roadway was in Collin County and the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Parker.   
 
Councilmembers further discussed the safety issues that may arise from parking along W. Lucas 
Road and options for prohibiting parking along the subject area that is within the city limits of 
Lucas. 
 
City Council directed staff to review roadside parking and public safety in the vicinity of 1989 West 
Lucas Road and bring back a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement 

between the City of Lucas and BlueSky Development LLC for a parcel of land 
situated in the Calvin Boles Survey, Abstract A0028, Tract 224 being all of a 63.6930 
acres of land located east of the intersection of Orr Road and Lucas Creek Drive. 

 
A presentation was given by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn discussing the 
development agreement from BlueSky Development LLC for the property located east of the 
intersection of Orr Road and Lucas Creek Drive.  The Development Agreement requested frontage 
relief on three lots, approximately 9 acres in size.  Staff has asked the developer to repave and 
complete base repairs on East Winningkoff Road and Orr Road with reimbursement of impact fees 
not to exceed the amount that was collected for road impact fees. 

 
City Council and Mr. Hilbourn further discussed platting procedures and the concept plan relating 
to this property.   
 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Millsap, to authorize 

the City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement between the City of Lucas and BlueSky 
Development LLC for a parcel of land situated in the Calvin Boles Survey, Abstract A0028, 
Tract 224 being all of a 63.6930 acres of land located east of the intersection of Orr Road and 
Lucas Creek Drive with a maximum of 17 lots.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 

 

Executive Session 
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
11.  Executive Session:  
 
There was no Executive Session scheduled for this meeting.  
 
12. Adjournment.  



5 | P a g e  
 

 
MOTION : A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Lawrence to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:46 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 
 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 
 

        ____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor       Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 





 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00839 (Amending Master Fee Schedule) 
Approved: July 21, 2016  - 1 - 
   

ORDINANCE 2016-07-00839 
[AMENDING APPENDIX C TITLED “FEE SCHEDULE”] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING 
APPENDIX C TITLED “FEE SCHEDULE” BY AMENDING ARTICLE 
4.000 TITLED “HEALTH DEPARTMENT” BY ADDING SECTION 4.200 
TITLED “NUISANCE ABATEMENT EXPENSES”; PROVIDING A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LUCAS: 
 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same is, 
hereby amended by amending Appendix C titled “Fee Schedule”, to read as follows: 

 
“APPENDIX C 

 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
. . .  
 

ARTICLE 4.000 HEALTH DEPARTMENT  
 

. . .  
 
Sec. 4.200 Nuisance Abatement Expenses 
 
The following expenses shall only apply when the nuisance abatement is completed by the City.  In the 
event the City causes the nuisance abatement to be completed by a third party, the actual third party 
expenses plus a $100.00 administrative fee shall be billed to the occupant/property owner. Failure to pay 
the expenses will result in a lien being filed as provided in Articles 6.02 and 6.03 of this Code.  

 
Administrative Fee $100.00 
Mowing Fee 
 Per acre mowing fee includes trash and debris removal up to 0.5 cubic 
 yards of trash 

$75.00 per acre 

Any Trash and Debris Removed Over 0.5 Cubic Yard $50.00 per each 0.5 
cubic yard 

 
 
. . . ” 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2016-07-00839 (Amending Master Fee Schedule) 
Approved: July 21, 2016  - 2 - 
   

Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances that are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of 
this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 21st DAY OF JULY  2016. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(06-20-2016/77473) 
 
 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
Major Scotty Morrison, Collin County Sheriff’s Office 
Deputy George White, Collin County Sheriff’s Office 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Presentation and discussion regarding the provision of law enforcement services by the Collin 
County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Background Information:  
 
On October 1, 2009, the City of Lucas entered into an agreement with Collin County Sheriff’s 
Office to provide law enforcement services.   
 
The functional areas within the Collin County Sheriff's Office are separated into divisions to 
allow for effective and efficient control of its numerous areas of specialty services. The 
following summarizes each division's responsibilities. 
 

• The Administrative Services Division is responsible for recruiting, hiring, and training 
the most highly qualified personnel to staff both the Sheriff's Office and the detention 
facility. In order to implement new technologies, comply with changing laws, and meet 
the increasing needs of the county's citizens, the Training Section staff researches, 
develops, and conducts comprehensive training programs for employees at all levels. 
 

• The Support Services Division includes records, communications, and support service 
functions. The Records Section handles all processing, maintenance, and storage of 
Sheriff's Office records, which includes offense, arrest and jail reports, and investigative 
records. The Records Section also processes arrest warrants received from the court 
system, and prepares crime reports for the state and FBI. Emergency 9-1-1 phone service, 
computer-aided-dispatch, and all radio communications are provided in the public safety 
communications center by staff assigned to the Communications Section. 

 
• The sections within the Field Operations Division are the most highly visible operations 

in the Sheriff's Office.  
o The Patrol Section is responsible for responding to calls for service from citizens, 

conducting investigations of criminal violations, detecting, and arresting those 
who violate the law. 
 

o The Criminal Investigation Section investigates reported criminal offenses by 
gathering evidence, collecting statements and preparing all paperwork necessary 
to file cases with the district attorney's office.  
 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

o The Narcotic Section investigates violations of controlled substance laws 
involving illegal activities.  Field operations works proactively by offering 
services and educational programs to help citizens reduce their vulnerability to 
crime.  

 
o The Crime Prevention Section staff conducts home and business security surveys, 

provides safety programs for children and adults, and maintains the Neighborhood 
Crime Watch Program. 

 
It is important to highlight the vast array of law enforcement services provided by the Collin 
County Sheriff’s Office and compare that to the law enforcement services that a small 
municipality is able to provide.  The City of Lucas would not be able to offer its citizens such a 
comprehensive program without a significant financial investment. 
 
The services described offer the citizens of Lucas a lot of value for their investment.  The costs 
to the City for fiscal year 15/16 (October 1 – September 30) includes $3,100 for operating and 
maintenance expense and $87,108 for the deputy’s salary for a total of $90,208.  With a 
population of 6,726, this costs each citizen an annual fee of $13.41 per person.  In addition, the 
City purchases a vehicle for use by the Lucas deputy every four years.  In fiscal year 13/14, the 
City purchased a vehicle for $45,300.  Assuming a four-year useful life of the vehicle, its 
annualized cost is $11,325, which adds a cost of $1.68 per resident.  The bottom line is for 
$15.09 annually per Lucas resident, we receive a comprehensive law enforcement program that 
has experience. 
 
The Collin County Sheriff’s Office provides a dedicated deputy to serve the Lucas community 
and a work schedule is developed based on monthly reporting and analysis of crimes that have 
occurred.  Our agreement goes beyond just the assignment of a dedicated deputy; the Collin 
County Sheriff’s Office also includes all those services previously described.  In addition, the 
City of Lucas benefits from the Collin County Sheriff’s Office use of technology to facilitate the 
efficient allocation of resources. A sample of the reports generated for Winningkoff, Blondy 
Jhune and Stinson is attached to demonstrate the capability that is available to the City of Lucas.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Sample traffic reports for Winningkoff, Blondy Jhune and Stinson 
2. 2016 Patrol Activity Report 
3. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
City staff have projected $97,700 in the fiscal year 16/17 budget including 60 extra patrol hours 
at $45 per hour. 
 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Sheriff-Elect Jim Skinner will be taking office in January 2017.  Major Scotty Morrison has been 
appointed as the City’s liaison regarding law enforcement services and Deputy George White 
was appointed as our dedicated deputy and began providing services on June 30, 2016.  Our 
current agreement was effective as of October 1, 2013 and continues for a period of four years 
from the effective date expiring October 1, 2017.  It is a great opportunity to begin to discuss the 
current provision of services in light of our budget process and the future contract negotiations. 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  

 





































Item No. 09 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Councilmember Tim Baney 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and provide guidance to staff regarding the enforcement activity associated with the 
prohibited use of fireworks. 
 
Background Information:  
 
Fireworks are prohibited in the City of Lucas and within 5,000 feet of the city limits.   
 
City staff contacted Major Morrison from Collin County Sheriff’s Office regarding the Fourth of 
July weekend.  Deputy George White, who is the dedicated deputy for the City of Lucas, starting 
working for us on June 30 and worked throughout the entire Fourth of July weekend. Additional 
resources that provided services from Collin County include the Sheriff’s District Unit, Citizens 
on Patrol and staff from the Fire Marshall’s Office.   
 
Public Works and Development Services had staff working (Saturday, Sunday & Monday).  
They were asked to monitor the City and when they contacted individuals igniting fireworks, 
they provided a verbal warning and told them to discontinue using illegal fireworks or law 
enforcement would be contacted.  Lucas Fire-Rescue monitored the trailheads and the eastern 
side of Lucas.  
 
Departmental Summary of Hours Worked over the Fourth of July weekend: 

 
Deputy George White   40 hours 
Fire-Rescue Department   75 hours 
Public Works Department  42 hours 
Development Services Department 12 hours 
Total Enforcement Hours  169 hours 

 
In addition to the enforcement staffing, signage at both City Hall and the Fire Station reminded 
everyone that fireworks are prohibited.  An article was included in the July Lucas Leader 
indicating that fireworks are prohibited and the dangers associated with fireworks, which is 
mailed to every water customer with their monthly invoice.  Information was also included in the 
weekly recap. 
 
Below represents some staff insight regarding the experiences that occurred over the Fourth of 
July weekend: 
 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
 
Collin County Sheriff’s Office:  Deputy White received information that the fireworks stand(s) 
located in Branch were advising their customers that they could go to Lucas to ignite their 
fireworks.   Individuals that were contacted by Deputy White that were igniting fireworks were 
given a choice of surrendering their fireworks or receive a citation.  The above picture represents 
the confiscated fireworks. 
 
Fire-Rescue:  This Fourth of July, we found that approximately half of the citizens we contacted 
knew that it was illegal to use fireworks within the city limits but chose to do so anyway.  These 
contacts easily complied with our requests to discontinue using the fireworks.  The other half that 
we contacted and did not know about the ordinance also complied without any issues.  Friday, 
July 1, and Saturday, July 2, seemed to have more groups that combined consuming alcohol and 
using fireworks.  After warnings to these groups by Public Works and the Fire-Rescue, law 
enforcement had to be called to gain compliance.  Having a strong law enforcement presence this 
year was a tremendous help.  In addition, the Lucas deputy actually confiscated the fireworks.  
Our hope is that word will spread through the community regarding this years’ Fourth of July 
experience and reduce the number of individuals using fireworks in Lucas next year.  The Fire-
Rescue responded to one grass fire on Monday, July 4.  A hearty thanks to an alert citizen who 
was mowing with his tractor when he observed the fire and immediately cut a firebreak with his 
mower.  If it had not been for this action, the fire would have been a much larger fire to manage.  
On Friday, July 1, the Fire-Rescue responded to one motor vehicle accident located on East 
Lucas Road, resulting in one patient being transported to the hospital. 
 
Public Works Department: There seemed to be a little confusion with the residents. Some said 
that they had been shooting fireworks for years and were unaware of the ordinance and others 
believed they were outside of city limits, when in actuality they were not. In one circumstance, 
we were told, "we weren't lawyers" and could not make them stop so the Deputy was notified. 
Most residents, when notified, did comply and we want to thank them for their cooperation.  We 
discussed that the ordinance was applicable within 5,000 feet of the city limits. There was a few 
long-time residents that did not want to comply with the ordinance but Deputy White was on 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

duty and there to back us up.  It would also be helpful to provide people with information on 
where they could legally ignite fireworks. Lafon’s old fireworks lot seemed to be an interesting 
stop for most of the drivers. I think it would be helpful to post signs around the City reminding 
folks that fireworks are prohibited in City limits and 5,000 feet outside the city limits. Public 
Works staff worked all three days, which, in my opinion, was a good proactive move to help 
improve safety.  Some citizens were upset but overall most interactions were cooperative and 
having the presence of the Deputy White was very beneficial.  It may also be helpful to have a 
preplanning meeting to ensure adequate staffing and good communication. 
 
Development Services:  Staff patrolled in the Building Inspection truck and after checking in at 
the fire station and talking with Chief Leonard about conditions near the old fireworks stands on 
E. Lucas, we drove through the Cimarron neighborhood.  We approached one house 
simultaneously with Deputy White and watched him shut down a fireworks show.  We then 
headed out to the old fireworks stand on the south side of E. Lucas Road.  We drove through the 
empty parking lot.  People seemed to be respecting the “No Trespassing” signs this 
year.   However, people were setting off fireworks at the other old fireworks site across from E. 
Lucas Road.  One car left and we ran off a couple of people in the other car.  We stayed at that 
site about 30 minutes, but no one stopped at either site.  We noticed that the flow of outsiders 
into Trinity Park is way down from last year.  We saw only a couple cars coming and 
going.  Kudos to Joe Hilbourn for chasing out unwanted guests last year.  We then drove down 
Arthur Court to check out an email report regarding aerials being set off in that 
neighborhood.  There was a huge party with strobe lights at the end of the street, but no 
fireworks were located when we were there.  Then we saw an aerial display to the south.  By the 
time we reached the Alexander Court cul-de-sac, there was only a spent multi-shot box and no 
one in sight.  Prime time for fireworks was 9:00 to 10:00 pm.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  

 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with Structural 
Assurance, LLC for the construction of the Blondy Jhune Road Bridge Replacement Project in 
the amount not to exceed $1,559,781.72 plus a 20% contingency.   
 
Background Information:  
 
The Blondy Jhune Road Bridge Replacement Project consists of replacing the west and east 
bridges on Blondy Jhune Road along with respective roadway approaches. The project is located 
between Country Club Road and Winningkoff Road. Work includes paving, grading, drainage, 
bridge structures, approach slabs, retaining walls, signage, and pavement markings, etc.  
  
Sealed bids will be received by the Purchasing Coordinator at City Hall until Wednesday, July 6, 
2016, at 2:00 P.M.  The Lucas City Council reserves the right to reject any or all bids.  
 
The apparent low bidder was Structural Assurance with a bid of $1,559,781.72 for concrete 
bridges.  The apparent low bidder and only bidder for the alternate design for a steel truss bridges 
was also Structural Assurance with a bid of $1,660,000.00. 
   
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
a. Bid Opening Table from July 6, 2016 
b. Bid Tabulations 
c. Recommendation Letter from Metropolitan Infrastructure 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
This project is funded using account 21-8210-491-121, Blondy Jhune Bridges and Safety 
Projects.  This account was established by certificates of obligation sold in mid-2015.  The 
account currently has balance of $1,643,194.  The funding of the full contingency could come 
from impact fees. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff does not have a recommendation at this time.  
  



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction 
contract with Structural Assurance LLC for the construction of the Blondy Jhune Road Bridge 
Replacement Project in the amount not to exceed $1,559,781.72 plus a 20% contingency of 
$311,956.00 and to amend the FY 15-16 Budget by using account 21-8210-490-114 Estates 
Parkway/Rock Ridge Road Project to be used to fund all or a portion of the contingency. 





ITEM CODE DESC CODE DESCRIPTION QNTY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($) UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($) UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($) UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($) UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($) UNIT PRICE TOTAL ($)

100 6002 PREPARING ROW 13 STA 2,965.00$       38,545.00$         2,000.00$       26,000.00$         4,563.98$       59,331.74$         10,000.00$     130,000.00$       11,000.00$     143,000.00$        $      3,273.96 42,561.48$        

100 6016 PREP ROW (TREE) (GREATER THAN 36 TO 48 IN DIA) 2 EA 1,650.00$       3,300.00$           1,500.00$       3,000.00$           2,860.59$       5,721.18$           2,000.00$       4,000.00$           1,000.00$       2,000.00$            $      2,750.00 5,500.00$          

100 6017 PREP ROW (TREE) (GREATER THAN 8 IN DIA) 34 EA 330.00$          11,220.00$         200.00$          6,800.00$           2,075.74$       70,575.16$         1,000.00$       34,000.00$         300.00$          10,200.00$          $      1,973.18 67,088.12$        

104 6017 REMOVING CONC (DRIVEWAYS) 22 SY 65.00$            1,430.00$           20.00$            440.00$              11.32$            249.04$              25.00$            550.00$              200.00$          4,400.00$            $           13.43 295.46$             

105 6070 REMOVING STAB BASE & ASPH PAV (6"-8") 2,622 SY 3.00$              7,866.00$           9.00$              23,598.00$         9.60$              25,171.20$         10.00$            26,220.00$         17.00$            44,574.00$          $             8.42 22,077.24$        

110 6001 EXCAVATION (ROADWAY) 225 CY 21.00$            4,725.00$           35.00$            7,875.00$           38.50$            8,662.50$           50.00$            11,250.00$         77.00$            17,325.00$          $           34.95 7,863.75$          

132 6006 EMBANKMENT (FINAL) (DENS CONT) (TY C) 850 CY 16.00$            13,600.00$         20.00$            17,000.00$         36.96$            31,416.00$         35.00$            29,750.00$         77.00$            65,450.00$          $           33.02 28,067.00$        

164 6027 CELL FBR MLCH SEED (PERM) (URBAN) (CLAY) 2,475 SY 1.00$              2,475.00$           5.00$              12,375.00$         2.40$              5,940.00$           10.00$            24,750.00$         2.00$              4,950.00$            $             0.75 1,856.25$          

260 6002 LIME (HYDRATED LIME (SLURRY)) 69 TON 158.00$          10,902.00$         200.00$          13,800.00$         171.60$          11,840.40$         195.00$          13,455.00$         200.00$          13,800.00$          $         164.95 11,381.55$        

260 6079 LIME TRT SUBGRADE(6") 3,487 SY 7.00$              24,409.00$         7.00$              24,409.00$         4.57$              15,935.59$         8.00$              27,896.00$         6.00$              20,922.00$          $             3.69 12,867.03$        

247 2094 FL BS (CMP IN PLC) (TY D GR 2) 520 TON 132.00$          68,640.00$         50.00$            26,000.00$         57.48$            29,889.60$         25.00$            13,000.00$         65.00$            33,800.00$          $           57.13 29,707.60$        

340 6011 D - GR HMA (SQ) TY - B PG64 - 22 298 TON 165.00$          49,170.00$         115.00$          34,270.00$         141.54$          42,178.92$         165.00$          49,170.00$         145.00$          43,210.00$          $         145.48 43,353.04$        

360 6002 CONC PVMT (CONT REINF - CRCP) (8") 1,811 SY 65.00$            117,715.00$       80.00$            144,880.00$       65.78$            119,127.58$       125.00$          226,375.00$       77.00$            139,447.00$        $           55.58 100,655.38$      

416 6004 DRILL SHAFT (36 IN) 336 LF 155.00$          52,080.00$         220.00$          73,920.00$         267.64$          89,927.04$         300.00$          100,800.00$       500.00$          168,000.00$        $         260.40 87,494.40$        

420 6014 CL C CONC (ABUT)(HPC) 64.8 CY 900.00$          58,320.00$         1,000.00$       64,800.00$         944.35$          61,193.88$         1,500.00$       97,200.00$         1,200.00$       82,080.00$          $         922.97 59,808.46$        

420 6123 CL S CONC (APPROACH SLAB) 124.3 CY 500.00$          62,150.00$         500.00$          62,150.00$         440.34$          54,734.26$         600.00$          74,580.00$         500.00$          62,150.00$          $         424.36 52,747.95$        

422 6002 REINF CONC SLAB (HPC) 3,150 SF 30.00$            94,500.00$         25.00$            78,750.00$         34.08$            107,352.00$       36.00$            113,400.00$       21.00$            66,150.00$          $           23.06 72,639.00$        

423 6005 RETAINING WALL (SPREAD FOOTING) 4,235 SF 60.00$            254,100.00$       75.00$            317,625.00$       77.12$            326,603.20$       65.00$            275,275.00$       60.00$            254,100.00$        $           52.21 221,109.35$      

425 6035 PRESTR CONC GIRDER (TX28) 416 LF 207.00$          86,112.00$         200.00$          83,200.00$         197.57$          82,189.12$         200.00$          83,200.00$         300.00$          124,800.00$        $         177.84 73,981.44$        

432 6016 RIPRAP (STONE TY R)(DRY)(12 IN) 17.78 CY 217.00$          3,858.26$           325.00$          5,778.50$           218.11$          3,878.00$           200.00$          3,556.00$           300.00$          5,334.00$            $           80.00 1,422.40$          

432 6003 RIPRAP (CONC)(6 IN)  8.89 CY 514.00$          4,569.46$           700.00$          6,223.00$           494.64$          4,397.35$           600.00$          5,334.00$           450.00$          4,000.50$           806.67$          7,171.27$          

450 6012 RAIL (TY T411) 274 LF 251.00$          68,774.00$         170.00$          46,580.00$         182.43$          49,985.82$         250.00$          68,500.00$         140.00$          38,360.00$          $         134.57 36,872.18$        

454 6001 SEALED EXPANSION JOINT (4 IN) (SEJ - A) 120 LF 87.00$            10,440.00$         85.00$            10,200.00$         88.32$            10,598.40$         100.00$          12,000.00$         110.00$          13,200.00$          $           96.13 11,535.60$        

459 6001 GABIONS (PVC COATED) (Gravity Wall) 771 CY 231.00$          178,101.00$       285.00$          219,735.00$       362.80$          279,718.80$       260.00$          200,460.00$       300.00$          231,300.00$       258.75$          199,496.25$      

459 6007 GABION MATTRESSES (PVC COATED) (12 IN) 82 SY 83.00$            6,806.00$           170.00$          13,940.00$         110.40$          9,052.80$           104.00$          8,528.00$           120.00$          9,840.00$           162.44$          13,320.08$        

464 6003 RC PIPE (CL III) (18 IN) 122 LF 55.00$            6,710.00$           80.00$            9,760.00$           129.54$          15,803.88$         85.00$            10,370.00$         150.00$          18,300.00$          $           93.11 11,359.42$        

467 6363 SET (TY II) (18 IN) (RCP) (6: 1) (P) 6 EA 1,830.00$       10,980.00$         1,500.00$       9,000.00$           1,597.83$       9,586.98$           1,650.00$       9,900.00$           3,000.00$       18,000.00$          $      1,495.65 8,973.90$          

496 6004 REMOV STR (SET) 2 EA 708.00$          1,416.00$           250.00$          500.00$              671.43$          1,342.86$           1,650.00$       3,300.00$           3,000.00$       6,000.00$            $         605.62 1,211.24$          

496 2007 REMOV STR (PIPE) 102 LF 44.00$            4,488.00$           20.00$            2,040.00$           13.17$            1,343.34$           25.00$            2,550.00$           100.00$          10,200.00$          $           24.11 2,459.22$          

496 6041 REMOV STR (LARGE) 2 EA 23,227.00$     46,454.00$         30,000.00$     60,000.00$         27,018.43$     54,036.86$         20,000.00$     40,000.00$         50,000.00$     100,000.00$        $    19,014.67 38,029.34$        

500 6001 MOBILIZATION (10%) 1 LS 105,000.00$   105,000.00$       184,000.00$   184,000.00$       195,726.00$   195,726.00$       220,000.00$   220,000.00$       200,000.00$   200,000.00$       149,319.25$   149,319.25$      

502 6001 BARRICADES, SIGNS AND TRAFFIC HANDLING 6 MO 1,317.00$       7,902.00$           4,000.00$       24,000.00$         2,203.51$       13,221.06$         10,000.00$     60,000.00$         7,000.00$       42,000.00$          $      9,681.82 58,090.92$        

506 6002 ROCK FILTER DAMS (INSTALL) (TY 2) 96 LF 35.00$            3,360.00$           50.00$            4,800.00$           60.00$            5,760.00$           24.00$            2,304.00$           150.00$          14,400.00$          $           29.03 2,786.88$          

506 6011 ROCK FILTER DAMS (REMOVE) 96 LF 9.00$              864.00$              10.00$            960.00$              12.00$            1,152.00$           10.00$            960.00$              20.00$            1,920.00$            $           14.44 1,386.24$          

506 6020 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (INSTALL) (TY 1) 580 SY 15.00$            8,700.00$           15.00$            8,700.00$           30.00$            17,400.00$         15.00$            8,700.00$           60.00$            34,800.00$          $           24.71 14,331.80$        

506 6024 CONSTRUCTION EXITS (REMOVE) 580 SY 9.00$              5,220.00$           10.00$            5,800.00$           12.00$            6,960.00$           9.00$              5,220.00$           10.00$            5,800.00$            $           10.54 6,113.20$          

506 6042 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (INSTL) (18") 1,400 LF 5.00$              7,000.00$           6.00$              8,400.00$           6.00$              8,400.00$           15.00$            21,000.00$         11.00$            15,400.00$          $             6.84 9,576.00$          

506 6043 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (REMOVE) 1,400 LF 1.00$              1,400.00$           1.00$              1,400.00$           1.50$              2,100.00$           2.00$              2,800.00$           2.00$              2,800.00$            $             1.15 1,610.00$          

530 6004 DRIVEWAYS (CONC)  301 SY 61.00$            18,361.00$         80.00$            24,080.00$         82.14$            24,724.14$         75.00$            22,575.00$         77.00$            23,177.00$          $           71.50 21,521.50$        

540 6001 MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST) 684 LF 20.00$            13,680.00$         40.00$            27,360.00$         84.00$            57,456.00$         25.00$            17,100.00$         25.00$            17,100.00$          $           80.50 55,062.00$        

540 6002 MTL W - BEAM GD FEN (STEEL POST) 397 LF 62.00$            24,614.00$         100.00$          39,700.00$         78.00$            30,966.00$         75.00$            29,775.00$         40.00$            15,880.00$          $           74.75 29,675.75$        

542 6001 REMOVE METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE 691 LF 4.00$              2,764.00$           5.00$              3,455.00$           18.00$            12,438.00$         5.00$              3,455.00$           7.00$              4,837.00$            $           17.25 11,919.75$        

542 6002 REMOVE TERMINAL ANCHOR SECTION 6 EA 193.00$          1,158.00$           400.00$          2,400.00$           600.00$          3,600.00$           190.00$          1,140.00$           300.00$          1,800.00$            $         862.50 5,175.00$          

544 6001 GUARDRAIL END TREATMENT (INSTALL) 8 EA 2,420.00$       19,360.00$         3,200.00$       25,600.00$         2,880.00$       23,040.00$         2,400.00$       19,200.00$         2,000.00$       16,000.00$          $      2,760.00 22,080.00$        

550 6001 CHAIN LINK FENCE (INSTALL) (6') Tree Protection 70 LF 9.00$              630.00$              25.00$            1,750.00$           36.00$            2,520.00$           12.00$            840.00$              75.00$            5,250.00$            $           28.75 2,012.50$          

550 6003 CHAIN LINK FENCE REMOVE 70 LF 4.00$              280.00$              5.00$              350.00$              6.00$              420.00$              6.00$              420.00$              20.00$            1,400.00$            $             5.75 402.50$             

552 6003 WIRE FENCE (TY C) 225 LF 8.00$              1,800.00$           20.00$            4,500.00$           26.40$            5,940.00$           25.00$            5,625.00$           30.00$            6,750.00$            $           20.64 4,644.00$          

560 6004 MAILBOX INSTALL-S (TWG-POST) TY 2 4 EA 413.00$          1,652.00$           650.00$          2,600.00$           660.00$          2,640.00$           1,000.00$       4,000.00$           300.00$          1,200.00$            $         632.50 2,530.00$          

560 MAILBOX INSTALL (BRICK) 3 EA 2,475.00$       7,425.00$           3,500.00$       10,500.00$         3,000.00$       9,000.00$           1,500.00$       4,500.00$           1,000.00$       3,000.00$            $      3,300.00 9,900.00$          

636 6002 ALUMINUM SIGNS (TY G) 252 SF 10.00$            2,520.00$           30.00$            7,560.00$           26.40$            6,652.80$           50.00$            12,600.00$         35.00$            8,820.00$            $           40.25 10,143.00$        

644 6001 IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TY10BWG(1)SA(P) 18 EA 193.00$          3,474.00$           400.00$          7,200.00$           480.00$          8,640.00$           600.00$          10,800.00$         700.00$          12,600.00$          $         569.25 10,246.50$        

644 6076 REMOVE SM RD SN SUP & AM 5 EA 83.00$            415.00$              150.00$          750.00$              600.00$          3,000.00$           200.00$          1,000.00$           100.00$          500.00$               $         575.00 2,875.00$          

658 6008 INSTL DEL ASSM (D-SW)SZ 1(FLX)GF2(BI) 6 EA 42.00$            252.00$              100.00$          600.00$              510.00$          3,060.00$           40.00$            240.00$              65.00$            390.00$               $         115.00 690.00$             

666 6287 REF PROF PAV MRK TY I (Y) 4" (SLD) (090MIL) 1,960 LF 1.00$              1,960.00$           3.00$              5,880.00$           4.80$              9,408.00$           5.00$              9,800.00$           3.00$              5,880.00$            $             3.68 7,212.80$          

666 6283 REF PROF PAV MRK TY I (W) 4" (SLD) (090MIL) 1,664 LF 1.00$              1,664.00$           3.00$              4,992.00$           4.80$              7,987.20$           5.00$              8,320.00$           3.00$              4,992.00$            $             3.68 6,123.52$          

672 6009 REFL PAV MRKR TY II-A-A 125 EA 11.00$            1,375.00$           7.00$              875.00$              4.80$              600.00$              10.00$            1,250.00$           8.00$              1,000.00$            $             5.75 718.75$             

740 6005 ANTI-GRAFFITI COATING (PERMANENT - TY III) 3,684 SF 1.00$              3,684.00$           1.00$              3,684.00$           2.09$              7,699.56$           2.00$              7,368.00$           3.00$              11,052.00$         2.00$              7,368.00$          

6001 6001  PORTABLE CHANGEABLE MESSAGE SIGN (2 EA)  28 DAY 165.00$          4,620.00$           90.00$            2,520.00$           154.29$          4,320.12$           500.00$          14,000.00$         150.00$          4,200.00$           77.72$           2,176.12$          

999 EROSION CONTROL MAINTENANCE 1 LS 2,535.00$       2,535.00$           3,000.00$       3,000.00$           3,600.00$       3,600.00$           5,000.00$       5,000.00$           12,000.00$     12,000.00$          $    10,000.00 10,000.00$        

5971 48" DIA MANHOLE 1 EA 2,257.00$       2,257.00$           10,000.00$     10,000.00$         12,600.00$     12,600.00$         2,500.00$       2,500.00$           7,000.00$       7,000.00$            $    12,075.00 12,075.00$        

TOTAL 1,559,781.72$    1,832,064.50$    2,078,814.38$    2,201,861.00$    2,236,840.50$    1,925,738.51$   

Notes:

 *   Engineer's Cost Estimate includes 10% contingency.

BLONDY JHUNE ROAD - BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT BIDS July 14, 2016

MCMAHON CONTRACTING IOWA BRIDGE & CULVERT GHB EQUIPMENT ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE *STRUCTURAL ASSURANCE ACCELERATED CRITICAL PATH





Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and provide guidance to staff regarding the revision and amendment of the Comprehensive 
Plan including: 

• Chapter 1 – Introduction 
• Chapter 2 – Demographics 
• Chapter 3 – Housing 
• Chapter 4 – Land Use 
• Chapter 5 – Economic Development 
• Chapter 6 – Parks, Recreation & Open Space 
• Chapter 7 – Streets, Drainage & Master Thoroughfare Plan 
• Chapter 8 – Water System 

 
Background Information:  
 
The Comprehensive Plan should be updated periodically to reflect changes in the community.  
The last update was conducted in 2006.  The City had its Comprehensive Plan kick off meeting 
that included the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Parks and Opens Space Board and the 
City Council on June 7, 2015.  The review process for all chapters except Chapter 6 starts with 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  The Parks and Open Space Board reviewed Chapter 6 
and then it was forwarded to Planning and Zoning who revised it. 
 
On June 16, 2016, Chapters 1, 2, 3 and 4 were placed on the agenda for review by the City 
Council.  The City Council requested that any recommended changes to Chapters 1, 2, 3 and 4 be 
forwarded to Councilmember Debbie Fisher or Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn. 
 
Staff will include the Comprehensive Plan review as a standing agenda item for all sections to 
provide the City Council with an opportunity to discuss any chapter of the Comprehensive Plan 
at any City Council meeting. 
 
A workbook will be handed out at the July 21 City Council meeting to assist in the review 
process of the Comprehensive Plan with the draft of Chapters 1 through 4 included in the 
workbook.  The following schedule will be used to facilitate review of the remaining chapters of 
the Comprehensive Plan: 
 
Chapter 5 – Economic Development: 

• P&Z - July 14 
• City Council - August 4 

  



Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
Chapter 6 – Parks, Recreation & Open Space: 

• Parks – June 28 
• P&Z – August 11 
• City Council – September 1 

 
Chapter 7 – Streets, Drainage & Master Thoroughfare Plan 

• P&Z – September 8 
• City Council – October 6 

 
Chapter 8 – Water System 

• P&Z – October 13 
• City Council – November 3 

 
Once the review is complete, City staff will reformat the document and create a cohesive, 
professional document. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA  

 



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
Requester: Councilmember Debbie Fisher and Public Works Director/City Engineer 

Stanton Foerster   
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider roadside parking and public safety in the vicinity of Kelly Farm Burger 
Stand located at 1989 West Lucas Road. 
 
Background Information:  
 
Since the June 16, 2016, City Council meeting, staff has been observing the parking associated 
with the Kelly Farm Burger Stand along W Lucas Road.  Two vehicles have been observed 
parking on W Lucas Road.  One on the south side of the roadway in the City of Parker 
extraterritorial jurisdiction, and one on the north side of W Lucas Road in the Lucas city limits. 
  
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
None 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
None 
 
Recommendation:  
 
None 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to...  



Item No. 13 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss Board appointment process, including application amendments, conducting interviews 
and updating procedures.  
 
Background Information:  
 
Advertising will begin this month on the City’s website as well as the August edition of the 
Lucas Leader to begin accepting applications to serve on a City of Lucas Board or Commission.   
Amendments are proposed to the Board/Commission application highlighted in yellow to assist 
in the application process, and suggestions are included below for consideration regarding the 
interview process:  
 
1. Candidates attend Council meeting with brief introduction and discussion with the Council 
2. Conduct interviews with the top 5 candidates allowing additional time for each candidate 
3. Hold a meet and greet open house  
 
Currently, there is one vacant Alternate position available on the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, and the following Boards have members with terms that will expire in October 
2016. 
 
Board of Adjustment:  
Randy Barnes  
Stuart Fink  
Adam Sussman (appointed as Alternate in November 2015, moved to a regular member position 
with a term expiring in 2016). 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission: 
Brian Blythe  
Andre Guillemaud  
Joe Williams  
Vacant Alternate Position  
 
Parks and Open Space Board: 
David Rhoads 
Chris Vanhorn  
Brenda Rizos 
 
 



Item No. 13 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Board/Commission amended application  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
  
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



 
 

CITY OF LUCAS 
 BOARD/COMMISSION VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 

 
Name: 
 
Address:  
 
Home Number:      Work Number:  
 
Cell Phone Number:      Email:  
 
Resident of Lucas:                     years Voter Registration No:  
 
Choose from the list below the Board/Committee that you would like to serve on in order of your 
preference.  Appointments are made each November with each Board member position serving a two 
year term. 

Board of Adjustments 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Parks & Open Space Board 
1. 
2. 
3. 

 
What is your personal vision for the City? 
 
 
 
 
 
Why do you want to serve on this Board/Committee?  
 
 
 
 

 
What qualifications can you bring to the Board/Committee?  
 
 
 
 

 
The above phone numbers will be used by the City to contact you. Do you prefer that your listed numbers 
be available to other committee members? 
Yes _____  No _____  
 
Signature: Date:  
 

Please mail to: 
City of Lucas - Attn: City Secretary 

665 Country Club, Lucas, TX  75002 
Email:  shenderson@lucastexas.us 



Item No. 14 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss the nomination process for the 2016 Service Tree Award Program.  
 
Background Information:  
 
The City of Lucas established a Service Tree Award Program in 2015 that allows for appropriate 
annual recognition of an individual, business, youth or civic group who has contributed a 
significant and useful service to the community.  The award consists of planting a living tree on 
City property and presentation of an award plaque by the Mayor at the City’s Founders Day 
event.  In 2015, four service trees were awarded to the First Lucas City Council; Rebecca Mark; 
Charlie Gaines; and Suzanne Christian Calton and Shirley Biggs Parker.   
 
The following dates have been outlined for consideration: 
 
• Application made available on City website     July 15, 2016 
• Application included as part of the August Lucas Leader   July 25, 2016  

(will be a tear-off page on back of newsletter)  
• Deadline to file an application with the City Secretary    September 9, 2016 
• Applications forwarded to Service Tree Nominating Committee September 9, 2016 

(consisting of Councilmembers Fisher, Duke and Millsap)  
• Item placed on City Council agenda for nomination consideration  September 15, 2016 
• Order trees and plaques        September 16, 2016 
• Announce winners and present tree/plaque at Founders Day   October 22, 2016 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Service Tree Application 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The Service Tree program account 6211-445 has $2,478 remaining in the 2015-16 budget. 
 
Recommendation:  
NA 
 
Motion:  
NA 



 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Community Service Awards Program 

 
The City of Lucas recognizes that many of its citizens, businesses, civic organizations, church, and youth groups 
contribute in a significant manner to the City each day, without reward or recognition.  The program's goals are to 
applaud and recognize activities that make a positive difference in our City, and to inspire others to think about 
how they might contribute.  
 
The City of Lucas has established a Service Tree Award Program that allows for appropriate annual recognition of 
an individual, business, youth or civic group who has contributed a significant and useful service to the 
community.  The award will consist of the planting of a living tree on City property and presentation of an award 
plaque by the Mayor that will be placed by the Tree. The presentation will take place during the annual City of 
Lucas Founders Day event. The recipient(s) will have their picture taken and the photo, along with brief article of 
recognition, will be in the City’s monthly newsletter, the Lucas Leader. 
 
To recommend an individual, business, or group for recognition please fill out the Service Tree Award 
Nominating Form. Additional forms can be found on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us or picked up at the 
Lucas City Hall.  Nominations must be submitted no later than September 9, 2016 to City Secretary Stacy 
Henderson at shenderson@lucastexas.us or 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002. 
 
 
 
  

http://www.lucastexas.us/
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


 
 
 
 

City of Lucas Service Tree Award Nomination Form 
 

Nominees to be selected for recognition should meet the following criteria:  
 

• Actions being recognized should benefit the City of Lucas or its residents in a significant manner. 
• Nominee may be individual, youth, Church group, Civic or neighborhood group (ex: HOA, garden club), youth 

group (ex: Boy or Girl Scout troop, 4-H Club), local business, local charity or other organization. 
• The Individual must live in the City of Lucas or have lived in the City of Lucas corporate limits during the time the 

service was performed. If a business or church, they must be located within the City of Lucas.  
• All nominees will be reviewed and finalists selected by the Lucas City Council at the September 15, 2016 City 

Council meeting.  The City of Lucas Service Tree Award(s) will be presented to the recipient(s) during the annual 
Lucas Founders Day event scheduled for October 22, 2016. The recipients will be notified in advance to allow 
family and friends to attend. 
 
Name of Individual or Group being nominated:  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Description of accomplishment or action that benefited the City of Lucas: 
 
 
 
 
 
Why do you believe this award is merited by this individual or group? 
 
 
 
 
 
The nominator confirms that to the best of their knowledge, the nominee has not received remuneration for any professional services 
rendered in performing the community services described above nor was the service performed as part of court ordered community service 
program. Further, nominee knows and approved of this nomination. 
 
Submitted by:    ________________________________ Date Submitted: __________________ 
 
Contact information: _____________________________________________________________ 



Item No. 15 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk   
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2016 Founders Day Parade. 
 
Background Information:  
 
In 2015, the Grand Marshal appointed by the City Council was Lee Bauer, retired volunteer 
firefighter for Lucas Fire-Rescue. The 2015 Founders Day event was cancelled due to inclement 
weather.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
N/A  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to nominate ____________________ as the Grand Marshal for the Founders 
Day Parade.  

 



Item No. 16 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

July 21, 2016 
 

 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item:   
 
Executive Session:  No Executive Session is scheduled for this meeting.  
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 


	00 - 07-21-2016 amended agenda
	AMENDED AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Regular Meeting
	July 21, 2016
	7:05 PM
	(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention
	and EMS District meeting)
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular Meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, July 21, 2016 at 7:05 pm or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS District meeting at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders...
	Public Hearing
	Consent Agenda
	All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	02a - City of Dallas Proclamation
	03 - Accessory buildings and fee schedue cs
	03a - Accessory Bldg  public hearing
	03b - Schedule of Use Chart public hearing
	03c - Schedule of Use Chart
	03d - Ordinance 2016-07-00840 accessory building
	04-05-06-07-Consent Agenda
	04a - 06-16-2016 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	June 16, 2016
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.


	06a - Kevin Wier resignation email
	07a - 2016-07-00839 Master Fee Schedule - mowing fees
	08 - Law Enforcement Presentation
	08a - Law enforcement backup
	08b - Interlocal for law enforcement
	09- FireworksEnforcement
	10 - Blondy Jhune Bridges Bid cs
	10a - Bid Opening Data
	10b - Bids Spreadsheet
	10c - SA Bid Approval
	11 - Comp Plan
	12 - Kelly Farm Burger Stand Parking cs
	13 - Board Appointments
	13a - Volunteer Application - proposed draft
	14 - Service Tree Award Nominations cs
	14a - City of Lucas Service Tree Award Program 2016
	15- founders day grand marshal
	16- Executive Session cs

